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[Photo by Richard F. Hope]  
First United Methodist Church  (34 South Second Street
)


Original town Lot Nos. 7 and 8 (as surveyed by William Parsons when Easton was established in 1752) were sold by the Penn Family to William Jackson, each for £25.
  Meanwhile, Lot Nos.5 and 6 were said to be “In Tenure of Dr. Ledlie” with a “Frame raised on it”.


At the end of the American Revolution, on 1 April 1783, Abraham Horn sold original Town Lot Nos.7 and 8 to politician Robert Levers.  Levers apparently then built (or at least “finished”)
 a “large frame building” on the property at the SE corner of Second and Pine Streets, and used it as his home after the Revolutionary War.
  He gave title to the property to his two daughters, Mary and Elizabeth (then “Spinsters”), in 1785.

· Levers had been appointed the virtual “dictator” of Northampton County when the properly elected officials refused to take their oaths of office to the new Revolutionary Government.
  It was Levers who read the Declaration of Independence in Easton on 8 July 1776, one of only three places in the country to have a public reading at that early date.
  
Levers’s “persistency in the prosecution of Toryism caused some bitterness among the few former Tories” who had not been forced to leave.  In 1785, a small mob of them, including a son and grandson of Easton’s first resident lawyer Lewis Gordon, broke down the door of Levers’s house one night armed with “stones, tomahawks and axes”, terrified his family, and allegedly assaulted Levers himself such that his health declined and he died three years later, in 1788. Four of the five men accused of the riot escaped punishment by fleeing to Virginia.
  

· This story becomes more pointed when it is understood that next door to Levers’s house, on land apparently incorporated in part in the Methodist Parsonage of today as well as partly into the Eastonia property,  was the “small frame building” that had been “the residence and office of Dr. Andrew Ledley after he was compelled to relinquish his property in the Square.”
  Dr. Ledlie had been suspected of Tory sympathies during the Revolution.


In 1789 (the year after Levers’s death), the Levers daughters were living in Pleasant Valley (Hamilton Twp., PA) and sold the Easton property to Easton merchant William Jackson for £300.
  Jackson immediately confirmed his purchase with the girls’ mother and brother (as administrators of Robert Levers’s Estate),
 and then obtained formal title from the Penn Family (which had apparently not been done before).
  Latter that year, Jackson apparently moved from Easton to Delaware Township, and resold a half interest back to Levers’s daughter Mary.  This deed indicates the presence of a “House” on the two Lots.
  

By 1812, Mary Levers had married Joseph Buskirk, a farmer in Hamilton Township, and she sold her interest in the property to George Ihrie.
  Ihrie also acquired the other half-interest in the property from the Sitgreaves Family in 1813.
  During the War of 1812, a large house at this location (presumably Levers’ former residence) was used as a barracks or armory.  Because of the building’s appearance – it was long and narrow, and supported on posts – it was nicknamed “The Saw Mill”.
  The property was purchased in 1827 by “Spinsters” Martha Moore and Euphemia Wall.
  These ladies had a family relationship, apparently through Martha’s father, Samuel Moore.
  They both became substantial Easton property owners.
  

Misses Moore and Wall sold the South 2nd Street house to the Methodists in 1832,
 who converted it into a church.
  
· Martha Moore’s namesake neice (through her brother, Samuel Moore) married Rev. Edward Townsend, a Methodist minister.
  
The property cost $1,700 for a “Messuage or Tenement” (building) that was “part stone and part frame” on property with 120’ of frontage on 2nd Street and 115’ of frontage along the adjacent Alley (now called Pine Street), which was part of original Town Lot Nos. 7 and 8
 as established by William Parsons when Easton was founded in 1752.
  
The Methodist Church
Easton may have been introduced to Methodist preaching in 1777 by a captured and paroled British Captain named Webb.  It is said that he preached in uniform in the schoolhouse behind the German Reformed Church, but apparently made no converts.
  After 1802, Easton was part of various Methodist “circuits” assigned to itinerant ministers.  In about 1815, the wife of wealthy merchant-miller Daniel Wagner (grandmother to Daniel W. Conklin) became a leading member of the church.
    
In 1825, Phillip Reese of Phillipsburg had a religious experience and was converted.  He thereafter invited itinerant Methodist preachers to his home.  A Methodist class in Easton by the preachers of the “Warren Circuit”, who appointed William Down as Class leader.  Down had some experience, since he had previously been a Methodist in England.  Although most of the members of this Class lived in Phillipsburg, the meetings were held in Easton.
  Regular meetings were organized the following year, and were held initially in the Easton Union Academy building on School-House Hill until the Trustees objected that the “multitudes who flocked to the services” overtaxed the “strength of the building”.
 

Services were thereafter held at the County Courthouse in Centre Square until they were “compelled to move”.
  They next went to an “old red storehouse” at the corner of Walnut and Northampton Streets, and thereafter to a tinker’s shop on Sitgreaves St. about a block from the present church location.
  In 1832, the tinker asked the Methodists to vacate, because their meetings caused his merchandise to fall off of his shelves, and some of his customers objected to his relationship with Methodists.
  
In 1830, the Methodist congregation purchased real estate at what is now 351-53 Ferry Street for a church,
 but it was sold off again two years later.
  After the Methodists acquired their South 2nd Street church property in 1832, they appear to have sold off a portion of it the following year, perhaps to raise money.
  
A pair of deeds in 1833, involving a sale to (and repurchase of the land from) Trustee Daniel B. Wagner, appear to identify two buildings on the property.
  These formal transactions evidence a significant event in the history of the church.  Apparently the pastor, Rev. J.S. McCool, became dissatisfied and formed an independent congregation in 1832, getting an appointment from that congregation in 1833.  The church property was then deeded to Daniel Wagner to hold for the independents.  However, a court suit forced the property to be deeded back to the “regular church” at the end of the year.  The independent congregation then languished, and Rev. McCool eventually became a Presbyterian.
 
In approximately 1835, the Methodists replaced the “Saw Mill” with a brick church.
  In the following year, a portion of the property (apparently similar to the parcel on which the present Rectory stands) was sold to Charles Schenck.
  Schenck (also spelled Schank) had opened his “Easton Museum of Wax Figures” on Christmas Eve (24 December) 1834, apparently while still a church tenant.  Admission was 25 cents, with children half price.
  
Joseph Mason, the Methodist minister from 1847-48, received a high compliment when Dr. Junkin (the founding educator at Lafayette College) recommended his preaching to students, as an example of a “perfect and finished scholar”.  On the other hand, the Methodist minister from 1849-51 was “the eccentric Billy Barnes, who feared neither man nor satan, hurled his anathemas against sin and wickedness, and all workers of iniquity, especially the Pope and the devil.”
  


The brick church building was destroyed in 1855 when a fire was deliberately set in a nearby stable “to burn up a horse”, and the fire spread to other buildings in the area, including the church’s shingles.  Local firemen focused their efforts to save nearby houses owned by a brewer – apparently Frederick Seitz – who had offered to “treat them”.
  The church was immediately replaced with the present brick church building, which was dedicated in 1856.
  An agreement with Frederick Seitz and Theodore S. Gould (another adjacent landowner) in 1872 closed down a private alley at the rear of the church property, and split up that land among the three adjacent landowners.
  

In 1882, an “infant school room” was added to the rear of the church, and a separate Bible school building was added in 1917-18.
  

Meanwhile, the house next door to the church was used as a parsonage at times since the early 20th Century.
  Numbered 44 South 2nd Street,
 it was expanded in 1974 by acquiring a strip of land from neighbors Eugene and Louisa Pappas (owners of  “The Eastonia” property to the South), and confirmation of reciprocal easements to the driveway into the parking lot.
  
� 	First United Methodist Church of Easton Website, www.fumcofeaston.org/ (accessed 3 Jan. 2008);  but see Northampton County Tax Records, www.unpub.org (listed as 42 South Second Street).  


� 	Deed, John Penn the Younger and John Penn the Elder to William Jackson, F1  559 (10 July 1789)(sale price £50 for original town Lot Nos.7 and 8, measuring 120’ on the East side of Fermor Street X 240’ deep);  see Charles de Krafft, Map of Easton Original Town Lots (from collection of Luigi Ferone, said to have been used by Penn agents to manage town lots c.1779-1800)(Lot Nos. 7 and 8). 


� 	Charles de Krafft, Map of Easton Original Town Lots (from collection of Luigi Ferone, said to have been used by Penn agents to manage town lots c.1779-1800)(Lot Nos.5 and 6). 


� 	See Release, Mary Levers, widow and administratrix, and George Levers, son and administrator, of the Estate of Robert Levers, by William Jackson, F1  566 (30 June 1789)(Northampton County Deed Records archive).  This deed recites Levers’s purchase from Horn – giving the date but no recording citation – and further indicates that when the property was given to Lever’s daughters in 1785 it included “the finished Messuage”.   A search of the Northampton County Deed Records indices did not turn up any references to a recording of the deed from Abraham Horn, suggesting that it may have never been recorded.  


� 	William J. Heller, Historic Easton From the Window of a Trolley-Car 149 (The Express Printing Co., Inc., 1912, reprinted by Genealogical Researchers, 1984). 


� 	Deed, Robert (Mary) Levers to Mary Levers and Elizabeth Levers, E1  107 (30 Sept. 1785), recited in Release, Mary Levers, widow and administratrix, and George Levers, son and administrator, of the Estate of Robert Levers, by William Jackson, F1  566 (30 June 1789)(Northampton County Deed Records archive). 


� 	Heller, Historic Easton From the Window of a Trolley-Car, supra at 7-8;  see Dr. Richmond E. Myers, Northampton County in the American Revolution 73 (Northampton County Historical Society 1976)(“Levers was in charge of just about everything in Easton.”).  


� 	E.g., Myers, Northampton County in the American Revolution, supra at 23-25. 


� 	See George E. McCracken, “Col. Robert Levers of Pennsylvania”, 55 The American Genealogist 129, 141 (July 1979)(William Gordon, son and Alexander Gordon, grandson, together with James Taylor, Lewis Gordon’s son-in-law but son of Declaration signer George Taylor, as well as James Pettigrew, collector of excise, and Michael Shall, Bethlehem constable);  Heller, Historic Easton From the Window of a Trolley-Car, supra at 149-50 (Levers’s house at the (apparently SE) corner of Pine and Second Streets).  See generally Dr. Richmond E. Myers, Northampton County in the American Revolution 74 (Northampton County Historical Society 1976)(Levers died in 1788).    


� 	William J. Heller, Historic Easton From the Window of a Trolley-Car 149 (The Express Printing Co., Inc., 1912, reprinted by Genealogical Researchers, 1984);  accord, Charles de Krafft, Map of Easton Original Town Lots (from collection of Luigi Ferone, said to have been used by Penn agents to manage town lots c.1779-1800)(Lot Nos.5 and 6 were “In Tenure of Dr. Ledlie, a Frame raised on it”). 


� 	See separate www.WalkingEaston.com entry for 62 Centre Square.  


� 	Deed, Mary Levers and Elizabeth Levers to William Jackson, F1  558 (7 May 1789).  


� 	Release, Mary Levers, widow and administratrix, and George Levers, son and administrator, of the Estate of Robert Levers, by William Jackson, F1  566 (30 June 1789)(Northampton County Deed Records archive).  


� 	Deed, John Penn the Younger and john Penn the Elder to William Jackson, F1  559 (10 July 1789)(sale price £50 “in specie”).  


� 	Deed, Willliam Jackson to mary Levers, G1  288 (16 Nov. 1789)(sale price £150 for half interest).  


� 	Deed, Joseph (Mary) Buskirk to George Ihrie, (23 Nov. 1812).  


� 	Deed, Samuel (Mary) Sitgreaves, et al., to George Ihrie, H3  311 (9 Mar. 1813)(sale price $7,500).  Samuel Sitgreaves had obtained the property from Jacob Arndt in 1803.  Deed, Jacob (Elizabeth) Arndt to Samuel Sitgreaves, G2  54 (20 June 1803).  


� 	Rev. Horace R. Hoffman, One Hundred Years of Methodism in Easton, Penna., A History of the First Methodist Episcopal Church 16 (Mack Printing Company 1931);  Pamphlet, The History of The First United Methodist Church of Easton (Hobson Printing Co., Inc.,  rev. ed. 2005 or later);  Leonard S. Buscemi, Sr., The 1992 Easton Calendar unnumbered p.45 (Buscemi Enterprises 1991);  Easton Daily Express, Illustrated Industrial Edition 6 (Jan. 1893, reprinted by W-Graphics).   


� 	Deed, George Ihrie to Martha Moore and Euphemia Wall, C5  384 (2 Apr. 1827)(and recital).  


� 	One source asserts that Martha Moore and Euphemia Wall (sellers of property on which the Methodist Church of Easton was built) were both Samuel Moore’s sisters.  Rev. Horace R. Hoffman, One Hundred Years of Methodism in Easton, Penna., A History of the First Methodist Episcopal Church 16 (Mack Printing Company 1931).  


	This assertion is probably mistaken.  As we have seen, Martha Moore was Samuel’s daughter, not his sisters.  The Moore Family history does not list Euphemia among Samuel Moore’s sisters or daughters, either.  James W. Moore, Rev. John Moore of Newtown, Long Island, and Some of his Descendants  188, 252 (Lafayette College, printed by The Chemical Publishing Company 1903).  


	However, there is evidence of some relationship (if only friendly) between Samuel Moore and Euphemia Wall.  During Samuel’s service in the army during the War of 1812, he sent a letter to his sister which included a direction to tell “Euphoemia” that “her relations are all in perfect health and that I have not yet received any letter from either her or Abigail or Abijah.”  James W. Moore, Rev. John Moore of Newtown, Long Island, and Some of his Descendants  274-75 (Lafayette College, printed by The Chemical Publishing Company 1903).  This comment – separately referring to Euphoemia’s “relations” – seems to suggest that her relations were not also relatives of Samuel’s.  


	Euphemia Wall was also a witness of the will of Samuel Moore’s widow, Sarah Green Moore.  James W. Moore, Rev. John Moore of Newtown, Long Island, and Some of his Descendants  252 (Lafayette College, printed by The Chemical Publishing Company 1903). 


� 	Miss Wall (later Mrs. Joseph Dawes) was also the long-time owner of the property at the NE corner of Spring Garden and North 2nd Street, and probable builder of the Hackett Mansion that still stands there.  See www.WalkingEaston.com entry for the Hackett Mansion at 165 Spring Garden Street.  


	Miss Martha Moore became an extensive landowner at the southern end of Northampton Street.  See www.WalkingEaston.com entries for 108 and 118 Northampton Street. 


� 	Deed, Martha Moore and Euphemia Wall to William Down, et al. (Methodist Episcopal Church of Easton), G5  732 (2 Apr. 1832)(sale price $1700).    


� 	Hoffman, One Hundred Years of Methodism in Easton, Penna., supra at 16;  Pamphlet, The History of The First United Methodist Church of Easton, supra; Buscemi, The 1992 Easton Calendar, supra;  Easton Daily Express, Illustrated Industrial Edition, supra at 6.   


� 	James W. Moore, Rev. John Moore of Newtown, Long Island, and Some of his Descendants  297 (Lafayette College, printed by The Chemical Publishing Company 1903)(Martha Moore, daughter of Samuel Moore, granddaughter of Samuel Moore, and great-granddaughter of Capt. John Moore).   See also Rev. Horace R. Hoffman, One Hundred Years of Methodism in Easton, Penna., A History of the First Methodist Episcopal Church 16 (Mack Printing Company 1931)(noting the relationship to Rev. Edward Townsend, but seriously mistaking the actual relationship between the various parties).


� 	Deed, Martha Moore and Euphemia Wall to William Down, et al. (Methodist Episcopal Church of Easton), G5  732 (2 Apr. 1832).    


� 	See A.D. Chidsey, Jr., The Penn Patents in the Forks of the Delaware Plan of Easton, Map 2 (Vol. II of Publications of the Northampton County Historical and Genealogical Society 1937). 


� 	Hoffman, One Hundred Years of Methodism in Easton, Penna., supra at 9;  Pamphlet, The History of The First United Methodist Church of Easton, supra;  Article, “War Prisoner First to Tell of Methodism, Church Established Years Later in 1831”, Easton Express, Saturday,12 June 1937, p.6.  But see Buscemi, The 1992 Easton Calendar, supra (Methodism first preached in Easton in 1802);  Easton Daily Express, Illustrated Industrial Edition, supra at 6 (same).    


	This story may be somewhat exaggerated.  M.S. Henry, History of the Lehigh Valley 131 (Bixler & Corwin 1860),  from which it may originate, actually only states that “Captain Webb, the Methodist preacher” was a prisoner on parole assigned to remain in Bethlehem until exchanged.  It also recorded that he had preached in New York “generally clothed in his military dress”.  


� 	Article, “Methodism in Northampton”, Easton Express, Thurs., 22 Oct. 1885, p.3, cols.3-4. 


� 	Hoffman, One Hundred Years of Methodism in Easton, Penna., supra at 11-13;  Pamphlet, The History of The First United Methodist Church of Easton, supra (until 1832);  Easton Daily Express, Illustrated Industrial Edition, supra at 6.  


� 	Hoffman, One Hundred Years of Methodism in Easton, Penna., supra at 13;  Article, “Methodism in Northampton”, Easton Express, Thurs., 22 Oct. 1885, p.3, cols.3-4;  Pamphlet, The History of The First United Methodist Church of Easton, supra (until 1832);  Easton Daily Express, Illustrated Industrial Edition, supra at 6.  See also M.S. Henry, History of the Lehigh Valley 131 (Bixler & Corwin 1860)(Philip Reese of Phillipsburg meetings circa 1830); Buscemi, The 1992 Easton Calendar, supra (congregation formed in 1831).  See generally separate entry  on 45 North Second Street for history of the Easton Union Academy.  


� 	Article, “Methodism in Northampton”, Easton Express, Thurs., 22 Oct. 1885, p.3, cols.3-4;  see Hoffman, One Hundred Years of Methodism in Easton, Penna., supra at 113. 


� 	Hoffman, One Hundred Years of Methodism in Easton, Penna., supra at 113-15;  Pamphlet, The History of The First United Methodist Church of Easton, supra;  Easton Daily Express, Illustrated Industrial Edition, supra at 6.  See also Article, “Methodism in Northampton”, Easton Express, Thurs., 22 Oct. 1885, p.3, cols.3-4 (old store house at corner of 6th and Walnut Streets). 


� 	Hoffman, One Hundred Years of Methodism in Easton, Penna., supra at 113-15;  Pamphlet, The History of The First United Methodist Church of Easton, supra.  


� 	Deed, Alexander H. Berthold, Administrator of the Estate of Frederick Berthold, to William Down Baker, et al., Trustees of Methodist Episcopal Church, F5  412 (29 May 1830)(sale price $300).  


� 	Deed, William Down, et al. (Methodist Episcopal Church) to Joseph horn and George Staub, H5  39 (12 Mar. 1832)(sale price $330).  


� 	Deed, William Down, et al. (Methodist Episcopal Church of Easton) to Jefferson R. Heckman, et al., F5  499 (17 Apr. 1833).  


� 	Deed, William Down, et al. (Methodist Episcopal Church of Easton) to Daniel B. Wagner, H5  488 (17 Apr. 1833)(sale price $5 for “two certain Messuages or Tenements and two contiguous Lots Nos. 7 and 8”);  Deed, Daniel B. Wagner, Trustee, to Methodist Epixcopal Church of Easton, H5  488 (20 Dec. 1833).   


� 	Article, “Methodism in Northampton”, Easton Express, Thurs., 22 Oct. 1885, p.3, cols.3-4. 


� 	Hoffman, One Hundred Years of Methodism in Easton, Penna., supra at 18;  Pamphlet, The History of The First United Methodist Church of Easton, supra.   This may coincide with the Deed, William Down, et al. (Methodist Episcopal Church of Easton) to Methodist Episcopal Church of Easton, A6  319 (30 July 1835).  


� 	Deed, The Methodist Episcopal Church of Easton to Charles Schenck, A6  319 (7 July 1836)(sale price $800 for land to the South of the Church with a 21’ frontage on South 2nd Street, including a two story frame building).  


� 	Ethan Allen Weaver, III Historical Notes First Series 289-90 (copied in Easton Public Library June 1936)(located in “Fermor Street next door south of the Brick Methodist Church”).  Weaver’s reference to an 1834 Christmas Eve newspaper advertisement appears to anticipate by a few days the opening of the brick Methodist Church, elsewhere dated to 1835.  It is also interesting that the admission prices are the same as those quoted for the wax figures museum in the “house of John Yohe” (apparently, later the Central Hotel, now the Hotel Lafayette) in 1815.  Id. at 136-37.  See generally separate www.WalkingEaston.com entry for Hotel Lafayette (11 North Fourth Street).  


� 	Article, “Methodism in Northampton”, Easton Express, Thurs., 22 Oct. 1885, p.3, cols.3-4. 


� 	Hoffman, One Hundred Years of Methodism in Easton, Penna., supra at 18;  Pamphlet, The History of The First United Methodist Church of Easton, supra.   See generally Easton Daily Express, Illustrated Industrial Edition, supra at 6;  M.S. Henry, History of the Lehigh Valley 131 (Bixler & Corwin 1860).  


	These sources do not identify the brewer.  However, the 1874 Atlas shows that Frederick Seitz Sr. owned the entire half block east of the Church, including an extensive row of houses extending down Pine Street east from the Church.  D.G. Beers, Atlas of Northampton County Pennsylvania, Plan of Easton (A. Pomeroy & Co. 1874).  Seitz and a cousin had founded their brewery business – the first in Easton – in 1821.  Jan Corwin, “Breweries Flourished in Old ‘Wild City’ Easton”, The Express, Sunday, 28 Aug. 1983, p.D-1, at D-4; S.M. Pakhill, “New brewery continues tradition”, Morning Call, Tuesday, 11 Nov. 1997, p.B1;  see Summa & Buscemi, Images of America: Historic Easton, supra at 65.    In addition, by 1874 the Frederick Seitz Brewery was itself located at the SE corner of Second and Ferry Street, and at least seven further buildings owned by various members of the Seitz Family were located in the Ferry/Second St. area within a block of the Church.  


� 	Hoffman, One Hundred Years of Methodism in Easton, Penna., supra at 21;  Pamphlet, The History of The First United Methodist Church of Easton, supra;  see Buscemi, The 1992 Easton Calendar, supra;  Easton Daily Express, Illustrated Industrial Edition, supra at 6.  


� 	Agreement, Methodist Episcopal Church of Easton, Frederick (Anna M.) Seitz, and Theodore S. (Ann) Gould, Misc. 15  1 (29 June 1872)(each landowner gets 5’ strip, Church’s strip is 90’ long).  


� 	Hoffman, One Hundred Years of Methodism in Easton, Penna., supra at 24-25;  Pamphlet, The History of The First United Methodist Church of Easton, supra.  


� 	Cf. Hoffman, One Hundred Years of Methodism in Easton, Penna., supra at 26 (1913 subscriptions for parsonage improvements).  


� 	Northampton County Tax Records, www.ncpub.org.  


� 	Deed, Eugene J. (Louise) Pappas to First United Methodist Church, 497  61 (4 Sept. 1974)(sale price $577.50 for parcel with a 9.24’ frontage on South 2nd Street).  





